
Monday, April 2, 2018

4:00 PM

CITY OF HAYWARD

Hayward City Hall

777 B Street

Hayward, CA 94541

www.Hayward-CA.gov

City Hall, Conference Room 2A

Council Economic Development Committee

Agenda



April 2, 2018Council Economic Development 

Committee

Agenda

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

PUBLIC COMMENTS:

(The Public Comment section provides an opportunity to 

address the City Council Committee on items not listed on the 

agenda as well as items on the agenda.  The Committee 

welcomes your comments and requests that speakers present 

their remarks in a respectful manner, within established time 

limits, and focus on issues which directly affect the City or are 

within the jurisdiction of the City.  As the Committee is 

prohibited by State law from discussing items not listed on the 

agenda, any comments on items not on the agenda will be 

taken under consideration without Committee discussion and 

may be referred to staff.)

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approval of Minutes of the Council Economic Development 

Committee Regular Meeting on March 5, 2018.

MIN 18-0471.

Attachments: Attachment I Draft Minutes from March 5, 2018

REPORTS/ACTION ITEMS

Preliminary Concept Review-United Growth Drive 

Through-2429 Whipple Road

RPT 18-0662.

Attachments: Attachment I Staff Report

Attachment II Conceptual Project Plans

Attachment III Map

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Future Meeting Topics as of April 2, 2018RPT 18-0693.

Attachments: Attachment I Future Meeting Topics as of April 2018

COMMITTEE MEMBER/STAFF ANNOUNCEMENTS AND REFERRALS

Page 2 CITY OF HAYWARD Monday, April 2, 2018

http://hayward.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3768
http://hayward.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3932d031-d577-4d78-89a0-b6b421d8754b.docx
http://hayward.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3766
http://hayward.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=52dd5ca2-0b6b-483f-b6d9-7e8fff70c9d4.doc
http://hayward.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ff7ea700-2be7-4c58-a83f-f4108cd4d2f4.pdf
http://hayward.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a3e890ba-17a1-4d13-bd3c-f5ab9f6c367c.pdf
http://hayward.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3771
http://hayward.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5d56d978-5dd8-4a7d-8c74-9118d2996961.docx


April 2, 2018Council Economic Development 

Committee

Agenda

ADJOURNMENT

Page 3 CITY OF HAYWARD Monday, April 2, 2018



CITY OF HAYWARD Hayward City Hall
777 B Street

Hayward, CA 94541
www.Hayward-CA.gov

File #: MIN 18-047

DATE:      April 2, 2018

TO:           Council Economic Development Committee

FROM:     Economic Development Manager

SUBJECT

Approval of Minutes of the Council Economic Development Committee Regular Meeting on March 5,
2018.

RECOMMENDATION

That members review and approve draft minutes.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment I Draft Minutes from March 5, 2018

CITY OF HAYWARD Printed on 3/30/2018Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™

http://www.legistar.com/


COUNCIL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

MEETING MINUTES – March 5, 2018

CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Halliday called the meeting to order at 4:06 p.m.

ATTENDANCE:

Committee
Member

Present
3/5/18

All Meetings
Year to Date

Meetings Mandated
By Resolution

Present Absent Present Absent

Michael Ly  3 1 3 1

Didacus-Jeff Joseph Ramos 3 1 3 1

Mayor Halliday (Chair)  4 0 4 0

Council Member Márquez  4 0 4 0

Council Member Mendall  4 0 4 0

OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE:

Kelly McAdoo, City Manager; Stacey Bristow, Interim Director of Development Services; Micah 
Hinkle, Economic Development Manager; Paul Nguyen, Economic Development Specialist; Suzanne 
Philis, Senior Secretary

PUBLIC COMMENTS

None

1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF SPECIAL MEETING FEBRUARY 5, 2018

A motion to approve minutes was made by Council Member Mendall with a second by Council Member 
Márquez. Minutes from the February 5, 2018 Regular Meeting were approved with Member Ramos 
absent.

2. CITY OF HAYWARD-OWNED PROPERTIES – AFFORDABLE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT

City Manager McAdoo said the topic was brought before the committee because Alameda County 
Supervisor Keith Carson requested cities identify city-owned properties in the county for possible 
development of affordable housing or temporary shelters. She noted Council Member Mendall had also 



Hayward Council Economic Development Committee
Regular Meeting Minutes
March 5, 2018
Page 2 of 7

asked for a list of city-owned properties so bringing the item for CEDC review and feedback satisfied 
both requests. She noted there were not many opportunities left and she gave the floor to Economic 
Development Manager Hinkle to review the list.

Manager Hinkle explained that when the Redevelopment Agency (RDA) was dissolved the City lost 
affordable housing development tools and instead focused on economic development projects such as 
the Route 238 CalTrans property acquisition, development of City Center, and airport hotels. He said 
the remaining properties fell into three categories:  City-operational properties (City Hall, fire stations, 
parking structures, etc.); City excess properties (properties acquired through public improvement 
projects); and economic development properties (Route 238 CalTrans properties, the building at C and 
Main Streets, etc.). He noted the list contained a handful of properties and only two could potentially 
be used as housing. Members clarified the locations and acreage of the properties.

Member Ly commented that there didn’t seem to be a lot of opportunity and asked what qualified as 
affordable housing. Manager Hinkle explained that properties would become income-restricted with 
the City most likely targeting low and very low-income families and individuals.

City Manager McAdoo said most likely the City could issue a Request for Proposals (RFP) from 
affordable housing developers, see what came in and then work from there.

Member Ly asked what caused affordable housing projects to bottleneck in the development process.  
Mayor Halliday said cost was the main reason and noted developers wanted to build market-rate 
projects. She mentioned San Francisco State Senator Scott Weiner had proposed a bill (sb827) that 
would abolish local land use controls concerning size, height, number of units and design standards, 
for developments near public transit hubs.

Council Member Mendall said he was expecting more properties to be on the list including those along 
Mission Boulevard. City Manager McAdoo explained that those were previously RDA properties, not 
technically City-owned, and would have to go through County Oversight Board review for the City to
acquire. Council Member Mendall confirmed those were the properties he thought the City should be 
combining and steering toward desired uses. He asked what influence the City had on the development 
of the former RDA properties and City Manager McAdoo said less and less starting in July when the 
County took control. She also noted, per state legislation, those properties were supposed to be sold at 
the highest and best use to maximize proceeds and using the land for temporary shelters would not 
fulfill the intent of the legislation.

Council Member Mendall asked if the City should attempt to acquire any of the properties before 
further control was lost. City Manager McAdoo confirmed he meant purchasing them from the state
and he said the City should at least be considering that. City Manager McAdoo expressed concern about 
staff capacity to explore that option, but Council Member Mendall pointed out the City didn’t have 
much time to act. Mayor Halliday said she had applied to serve on the committee making 
recommendations to the County Oversight Board.

City Manager McAdoo said there was some latitude in the dissolution statute of the RDA for the City to 
say that it intended to consolidate the parcels and sell them as one for economic development 
purposes, but acknowledged the timeliness of the situation and said she would have staff take a look.



Hayward Council Economic Development Committee
Regular Meeting Minutes
March 5, 2018
Page 3 of 7

Regarding the City-owned property list and what to do with the parcels, Council Member Mendall said 
no to interim housing and support services. He said was open to the possibility of affordable housing 
perhaps at the site off D Street although that wasn’t his preferred use. Council Member Márquez 
suggested microunits or tiny homes at that site and he agreed that could work.

Council Member Márquez said she would definitely consider development of micro units, tiny homes, 
or manufacturer homes—any product more affordable by design and material, but needed more 
information on how many would be proposed for the two sites mentioned. She said she was not in 
favor of temporary housing especially if that meant encampments.

City Manager McAdoo said generally that was what it meant, noting Oakland was using Tuff Sheds, 
which she philosophically disagreed with. From a public safety perspective, she said staff was not in 
favor of sanctioning encampments. She said she would consider bringing in construction trailers to 
surplus sites—similar to San Francisco—with the understanding that people could stay temporarily, 
but noted there was still some risk related to relocation obligations. She also questioned who would 
manage the site and what agency would maintain on site services.

Council Member Márquez asked if the City could apply for County Measure A1 funding to build 
microunits or tiny homes. City Manager McAdoo said A1 funding was for long-term solutions, but said 
the City could apply for County funding. Council Member Márquez was in favor of exploring that option.

Council Member Márquez asked staff what was meant by support services (question 3). City Manager 
McAdoo explained that with no place to keep their belongings, homeless were often forced to leave 
their things by creeks or in parking garages, so one idea was to provide storage lockers. Council 
Member Márquez said she would be supportive if the lockers were easily accessible at facilities or 
maintenance yards near public transit rather than in neighborhoods.

Council Member Márquez said she was interested in allocating a percentage of the CalTrans properties 
to affordable housing to better utilize A1 and inclusionary housing funding. City Manager McAdoo said 
that was a conversation for the entire City Council noting the intent of buying the CalTrans properties 
was to generate revenue when selling the parcels to developers. She said the RFP could include 
language that affordable housing was highly desirable and then see what the impact would be on 
pricing.

Council Member Márquez asked when the RFP would come before City Council for review and City 
Manager McAdoo said March 13th, 20th, and 27th at Closed Session. Council Member Márquez also asked 
if it was July of 2018 that the County took control of RDA properties and that was confirmed.

Mayor Halliday pointed out that affordable housing was included in the William-Lyons development 
and staff confirmed any development on CalTrans property would be required to have 10% affordable 
units or pay an in-lieu fee.

Mayor Halliday said she also was not in favor of temporary housing, but regarding support services, 
she emphasized the need for permanent winter warming shelters October through March. She 
acknowledged that wasn’t the same as a navigation center, noted the City already funded temporary 
winter warming shelters, but said possibly the two could be combined.



Hayward Council Economic Development Committee
Regular Meeting Minutes
March 5, 2018
Page 4 of 7

Mayor Halliday said she wasn’t sure about question 4 (Are there properties with a higher priority for 
disposition than others that staff should focus on?). She said perhaps the RDA properties and suggested 
a mixed-use development generate the required revenue. City Manager McAdoo recommended the 
Route 238 properties remain the priority but reiterated that staff would review the RDA properties to 
see if any made strategic sense to acquire. 

Economic Development Manager Hinkle pointed out that for some parcels on Mission Boulevard 
acquisition was anticipated to assemble enough land for a larger-scale development.

Council Member Mendall clarified that the property on Main Street should be rezoned for a park or 
community garden along with the property next to it. He also suggested that language for any 
development on CalTrans properties should emphasize that affordable units needed to be onsite 
rather than paying the in-lieu fee. He asked staff to send a basic list of all RDA properties in Hayward.

3. REGIONAL MINIMUM WAGE INVENTORY

Economic Development Manager Hinkle explained that at the request of CEDC members, staff put 
together an inventory of regional minimum wage amounts and timelines.

Council Member Mendall said that he had long felt that Hayward needed to do more than the state to 
raise the local minimum wage. He said it was probably impossible to survive in the Bay area on $10 an 
hour. He said he recognized that there would be impacts to local businesses, but there were ways to 
mitigate the impacts and pointed out most were already paying more. He said it was shameful that 
large, profitable corporations like fast food restaurants used a business model that paid people dirt. 
He suggested that businesses with more than 50 people should be required to pay a higher wage.

Member Ly suggested interviewing temporary staffing agencies to find out what businesses were 
paying to attract workers. He said it had to be more than minimum wage to compete and explained 
that last year he raised wages at his business by 16% and he still had a hundred openings. Member Ly 
said he didn’t think the situation was going to get any better and not all industries would be able to 
survive in this environment. He cautioned against hurting small businesses.

Council Member Márquez said she was open to exploring raising the minimum wage, but she wasn’t 
sure of the timeline to do so. She didn’t know how many employees worked at a typical fast food 
franchise and would need more information. City Manager McAdoo pointed out that most fast food 
restaurants were independent franchises with less than 50 employees and to analyze appropriate 
numbers would require reprioritizing staff time.

Looking at the chart provided, Council Member Márquez noted each city took a different approach to 
wages and more analysis would be needed to determine Hayward’s approach and timeline.

Mayor Halliday said the state wouldn’t raise wages to $15 an hour until 2023 and said Hayward should 
accelerate the process, but acknowledged it would take staff time to develop recommendations. She
expressed concern about the impact of wage increases on local non-profits.

Mayor Halliday wondered what businesses like Target or Costco paid and Member Ly said Costco paid
$13 an hour to start with benefits.



Hayward Council Economic Development Committee
Regular Meeting Minutes
March 5, 2018
Page 5 of 7

Mayor Halliday said she would like to step up the state’s timeline by a couple of years, but the real 
question was which businesses would a minimum apply to and how could the City avoid hurting the 
businesses that really couldn’t afford to pay it.

City Manager McAdoo said an accelerated timeline would require a lot of outreach and discussion so 
there would be no misperception on what the Council was trying to accomplish.

Mayor Halliday said she hadn’t heard from constituents that they needed the minimum wage 
increased, but noted those same people probably didn’t have the time to come into City Hall to 
complain. She suggested looking at San Leandro as an example.

Council Member Márquez pointed out that San Mateo exempted non-profits.

Council Member Mendall said Hayward could craft language any way they wanted. City Manager 
agreed but noted the staff time that would take. Council Member Mendall pointed out that solving the 
housing affordability issue was taking time, too and raising the minimum wage might keep someone 
in their house or apartment.

Member Ly asked if San Leandro had experienced any negative impacts from raising the minimum 
wage. Economic Development Specialist Nguyen said it depended on who you talked to. He said 
restaurants would say yes there were impacts, but the UC Berkeley Labor Center (the source of the 
chart data), found that any short-term impacts were mitigated by long-term benefits. He concluded 
there were no easy answers.

Mayor Halliday asked if the CEDC would like to recommend that Council discuss the matter at a Work 
Session and members said yes. Council Member Mendall pointed out it would take staff time to prepare 
a report and City Manager McAdoo said Council could start with the chart. Mayor Halliday suggested a 
staff report that captured the comments of the CEDC should accompany the chart and members agreed.

Mayor Halliday asked Member Ly if new tax laws were proving beneficial to his business. Member Ly 
said yes noting the tax savings would help mitigate the $3 million increase in labor costs he 
experienced last year. He said he was already paying at least $2 more than minimum wage for entry 
level positions, usually $4-$5 more for heavy lifters, so any required increase wouldn’t impact him.

Member Ly pointed out that most big businesses were already paying more so the City needed to be 
careful not to hurt businesses that could least afford it. City Manager McAdoo expressed concern on 
staff outreach to gather that data and when Mayor Halliday asked if there was an easy to find out what 
fast food restaurants were paying Economic Development Specialist Nguyen said the information was 
proprietary and businesses didn’t have to tell hourly rates or how many employees they had.

Member Ly suggested calling temp agencies, but Specialist Nguyen cautioned that outreach by a 
government entity would not garner the same results as would inquiring about rates as a paying client.

Council Member Mendall said he was ready to move forward without that information.

Mayor Halliday said she would like more information.

City Manager McAdoo pointed out that Fremont was Hayward’s biggest competitor when it came to 



Hayward Council Economic Development Committee
Regular Meeting Minutes
March 5, 2018
Page 6 of 7

attracting new businesses and suggested that information be included in the staff report to 
demonstrate the advantage of accelerating increases slightly faster than other cities.

Council Member Mendall asked if higher wages impacted Hayward’s ability to attract businesses and 
Specialist Nguyen said from the advanced industry and industrial perspective, no, local businesses
already paid a good starting wage. From what he’s read, Specialist Nguyen said the greatest impact 
would be on retailers and restaurants. Any minimum wage increase could impact the City’s ability to 
attract mom n’ pop or start-up retailers, he said.

4. APPROVAL OF FUTURE MEETING TOPICS AS OF MARCH 5, 2018

Economic Development Manager Hinkle said staff was working to address topics on the list and said 
data regarding a Hayward Bucks Program would be discussed at the next meeting. He also noted a 
report on sales tax revenues and a report back from the retail consultant would be coming soon.

Mayor Halliday said she would like to see a report on workforce development efforts.

Council Member Mendall said he would like to hear about the progress of the Downtown Specific 
Plan Update. Interim Director of Development Services Bristow said she would be presenting Council 
with a memo that week.

Council Member Márquez asked about an update to the Economic Development Strategic Plan (EDSP) 
and Manager Hinkle noted some sections had already been reviewed by the CEDC, that the Plan ended 
in 2018, and that staff was working on revamping the entire plan for CEDC review.

Regarding an analysis of sales tax generation, Council Member Márquez noted revenues came in 
higher than projected and she asked if high performing sectors could be identified. City Manager 
McAdoo said a consultant from MuniServices could give a report to the City Council.

Council Member Mendall said he would like the comparison of sales tax generation by housing versus 
retail uses be folded into that report from MuniServices. City Manager McAdoo said the spending 
power of new households on sales tax revenues should also be considered and Council Member 
Mendall said that was exactly what he wanted to see.

Council Member Mendall commented that rather than revamp the entire EDSP, perhaps staff should 
concentrate on solidifying its retail approach. Economic Development Manager Hinkle said the retail 
consultant would be providing the baseline information for retail and making recommendations on 
how to proceed. Members agreed that solid progress was already being made in the Industrial Sector.

City Manager McAdoo noted the Plan sunset in 2018 and said even if it were a short-term plan it 
would be useful to have goals in place. She said the retail section could be more robust and the 
industrial section could be a continuation.

Economic Development Manager Hinkle said staff was also working to revise the format of the Plan 
and could include the Annual Update of Economic Development Activities with the revised Plan. 



Hayward Council Economic Development Committee
Regular Meeting Minutes
March 5, 2018
Page 7 of 7

COMMITTEE MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS AND REFERRALS

Mayor Halliday said the ribbon cutting for the Dow Dupont Innovation Center was really cool and it 
was exciting to have that business in Hayward. In other news, she was sad to announce the closing of 
the 2525 Vintage & Modern Resale Clothing store on Foothill Boulevard. The City wasn’t at fault, she 
said, the owner had personal reasons for closing, but it was another downtown retail business lost.

Mayor Halliday reminded members that Hayward had two finalists nominated for the East Bay 
Economic Development Alliance’s Innovation Awards coming up on March 29th:  ThermX (makes 
custom components for the semi-conductor industry) and Reflexion (developing a revolutionary 
device for the detection and prevention of cancer). When the Mayor mentioned the event was sold 
out, Economic Development Specialist Nguyen said the City had one table. Then he noted the two 
businesses were so excited about the nominations they had purchased their own tables for the event.

ADJOURNMENT:  The meeting was adjourned at 5:18 p.m.



CITY OF HAYWARD Hayward City Hall
777 B Street

Hayward, CA 94541
www.Hayward-CA.gov

File #: RPT 18-066

DATE:      April 2, 2018

TO:           Council Economic Development Committee

FROM:     Economic Development Manager

SUBJECT
Preliminary Concept Review-United Growth Drive Through-2429 Whipple Road
That the Council Economic Development Committee reviews and evaluates the policy questions related
to drive through restaurants and provides high-level feedback on this project concept (Attachment II).
SUMMARY

The project proponent, United Growth Capital Management (United Growth), is a development and asset
management firm that has specialized in the development and redevelopment of first-class retail centers
throughout the United States for over twenty years. United Growth would like to entitle a drive-through
restaurant at 2429 Whipple Road within the Industrial (I) district. Current zoning prohibits drive-
through restaurants within a half-mile radius of an existing restaurant that has a drive-through. As this
zoning would not allow United Growth to proceed at the Whipple Road location, they are seeking
feedback on their proposed development.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment I Staff Report
Attachment II Conceptual Project
Attachment III Aerial Map

CITY OF HAYWARD Printed on 3/30/2018Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™

http://www.legistar.com/


Page 1 of 4

DATE: April 2, 2018

TO: Council Economic Development Committee

FROM: Economic Development Manager

SUBJECT: Preliminary Concept Review-United Growth Drive Through- 2429 Whipple
Road

RECOMMENDATION

That the Council Economic Development Committee reviews and evaluates the policy 
questions related to drive through restaurants and provides high-level feedback on this 
project concept (Attachment II).

SUMMARY 

The project proponent, United Growth Capital Management (United Growth), is a 
development and asset management firm that has specialized in the development and 
redevelopment of first-class retail centers throughout the United States for over twenty years. 
United Growth would like to entitle a drive-through restaurant at 2429 Whipple Road within 
the Industrial (I) district. Current zoning prohibits drive-through restaurants within a half-
mile radius of an existing restaurant that has a drive-through.  As this zoning would not allow 
United Growth to proceed at the Whipple Road location, they are seeking feedback on their 
proposed development.

PURPOSE OF REVIEW

An initial review of a concept policy issue is before the Council Economic Development 
Committee (CEDC) to obtain feedback prior to conducting any further studies. A concept 
review of preliminary project proposals is typically conducted with catalyst developments 
or to discuss policy issues where upfront feedback is beneficial to a proponent of a project. 
This project is in the preliminary phase; therefore, no technical studies or complete plans 
are available. The purpose of this review is to introduce the preliminary concept and policy 
issues to the CEDC and obtain high-level feedback on the concept and policy issues related 
to drive-through restaurants. 



Page 2 of 4

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION

The primary objective for United Growth is to attract a productive mix of quality restaurant 
and retail tenants that serve the community and complement its centers and the
surrounding area, focusing on retail trade areas with high traffic, excellent visibility, strong 
demographics, and ease of property ingress/egress. Examples of tenants United Growth 
has developed for in the past include:

 The Habit Burger Grill
 T-Mobile
 Bank of America
 Burger King
 Five Guys
 Panera Bread 
 Petco
 Verizon wireless
 Pei Wei Asian Diner
 Starbucks
 Dick’s Sporting Goods

United Growth has made intensive efforts to attract commercial retail and restaurant 
tenants to this Hayward site for over four years. United Growth reports that over the years, 
many quality restaurant tenants have expressed interest in the subject property but have 
passed due to the current zoning limitation of drive-throughs. Some of the potential tenants 
elected to focus their efforts in other jurisdictions that allow drive-throughs given that 
these establishments provide tenants greater store sales, which enable them to afford high 
Bay Area rents.

The development site is a vacant lot at the northeast intersection of Whipple Road and 
Wiegman Road, anchored by City Sports located within the City. It joins at the edge of the 
880 Key Retail Area identified in the Economic Development Strategic Plan. Destination 
retail includes:

 24 Hour Fitness
 Target
 Home Depot 
 Food Maxx 

Nearby restaurants include: 
 Starbucks 
 McDonald’s 
 Taco Bell 
 Denny’s



Page 3 of 4

On the west side of the 880 Retail Area is Union Landing, a major retail center anchored by
Walmart, Best Buy, Lowes, and Cinemark Theatre. Union Landing is a major regional draw 
for the area. There is easy access into this retail area both from the south and north 
direction. Major arteries are Whipple Road and Industrial Parkway SW. The cluster of 
existing retail makes this area a prime location to expand its commercial use. An aerial map 
of the site is included as Attachment III. 

POLICY DISCUSSION AND CURRENT ZONING

Current Zoning. The subject property, is located within the City’s Industrial zoning district 
in which drive-in establishments (e.g. drive-through restaurants, drive-in theaters, car 
washes, gas stations, etc.) require the review and approval of an Administrative Use Permit. 
Drive-in establishments are further referred to comply with the minimum design and 
performance standards set forth within the General Commercial (“CG”) zoning district in 
addition to the development standards (setbacks, lot coverage, height, etc.) of the “I” zoning 
district. However, Section 10-1.1045(j)(5) of the Hayward Municipal Code outlines the 
following standard with respect to drive-in and drive-through restaurants:

“Drive-in or drive-through restaurants shall be prohibited within half-mile 
radius of one another as measured from the building walls of existing or 
proposed buildings”.

Given that the proposed project site is located within 0.4-milesof an existing McDonald’s 
Restaurant located at 30147 Industrial Parkway SW, a drive-through establishment would 
be prohibited, thereby eliminating a potential applicant’s ability to apply for an 
Administrative Use Permit to operate another drive-through establishment. 

Policy Analysis. As noted above, the half mile prohibition standard does not allow the 
opportunity to apply for an Administrative or Conditional Use Permit if there is another 
drive-through restaurant within the specified distance.  For this project to move forward, 
the applicant would need to receive City Council approval of a Zoning Text Amendment, 
changing the drive-thru regulations to allow greater flexibility. As such, the project 
proponent is requesting that the CEDC provide high level feedback of their concerns, issues, 
and/or support to United Growth related to an amendment to the Hayward Municipal Code 
that may introduce greater flexibility to this standard, where appropriate.

The existing regulations were put into place to eliminate possible overconcentration and 
saturation of drive-through establishments.  From a staff perspective, there could be some 
level of flexibility provided to freeway/auto oriented locations where drive-thrus would 
provide benefits to the Hayward and traveling community. Potential language could 
include maintaining the current ½ mile prohibition but including some form of “special 
required finding” that grants applicants the ability to apply for a Use Permit (Planning 
Commission). For example, the finding or criteria of the amended language may include, 
but not be limited to, visibility from an interstate or major freeway (I-880, I-580, or S-92), 
distance from residential land uses, or a maximum number along some arterial and 



Page 4 of 4

secondary streets. Further study of this language and its associated impacts would be part 
of the application process, should the applicant elect to move forward with a Zoning Text 
Amendment.

ECONOMIC IMPACT

City staff have taken multiple inquires on additional restaurants with drive-thrus but were 
not able to move forward given the existing 1/2-mile distance requirements.  The Hayward 
drive-thru restaurant market remains strong.  Depending on restaurant type and demand, 
sales tax revenues could range between $15,000 to $75,000 annually. In addition, a long-
standing vacant retail location, could be developed.  Currently Chik-fil-A, Dunken Donuts, In 
and Out, El Pollo Loco and Habit Burger are looking for additional locations within the East 
Bay, including the Hayward market. 

STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

This agenda item supports the Complete Communities Strategic Initiative. The purpose of 
the Complete Communities Strategic Initiative is to create and support structures, services, 
and amenities to provide inclusive and equitable access with the goal of becoming a 
thriving and promising place to live, work and play for all. This agenda item supports the 
following goal and objective:

Goal 3: Develop a regulatory toolkit for policy makers.

Objective 1: Update, streamline and modernize zoning and codes. 

Objective 3: Develop and refine other regulatory tools. 

NEXT STEPS

After the Council Economic Development Committee reviews and provides comments on the 
project concept, the project proponent will determine if they would like to pursue the project.  
At that time, the project proponent would start preparing a formal application to the City.

Prepared by: Ramona Thomas, Economic Development Specialist

Recommended by: Micah Hinkle, Economic Development Manager

Approved by:

Kelly McAdoo, City Manager



20'-0"

BUILDING

SETBACK

2
0
'
-
0
"

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G

S
E

T
B

A
C

K

WHIPPLE ROAD

W
E

I
G

M
A

N
 
R

O
A

D

QSR

3,500 S.F.

40'

(E)

CITY SPORTS CLUB

(E)

TARGET

(E)

CALIFORNIA HIGHWAY PATROL

(E)

HB KITCHEN BATH INC.

(E)

SHOPS

(E)

MORGAN TECHNICAL

CERAMICS

N
O
 

P
A
R
K
I

N
G

8
7

.
5

'

D/T

1

9

'
-

0

"

2

5

'
-

0

"

9

'
-

0

"

6

'
-

0

"

1

9

'
-

0

"

9

'
-

0

"

COMPACT

PATIO

12'-0" 6'-0"10'-0"

(E)

AUTO REPAIR

T

2

0

'
-

0

"

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

SCALE:  1" = 20'-0"

JOB NO.:

REV. NO. REV. DATE

DATE:

JOB NO.:

REV. NO. REV. DATE

DATE:

w w w . t w - a r c h i t e c t s . c o m

920 First Street, Suite 202

Benicia, CA 94510

Tel: (707) 747-1231

TOM WILSON ARCHITECT, INC.

X - 9

PRELIMINARY

SITE PLAN

12-22-2017

UNG40

R
E

T
A

I
L
 
D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T

2
4
2
9
 
W

H
I
P

P
L
E

 
R

O
A

D

H
A

Y
W

A
R

D
,
 
C

A
 
9
4
5
4
4

1
0

0
0

 
F

O
U

R
T

H
 
S

T
.
 
#

2
9

0

S
A

N
 
R

A
F

A
E

L
,
 
C

A
 
9

4
9

0
1

(
4

1
5

)
 
7

0
7

-
7

0
0

0

 
w

w
w

.
u

n
i
t
e

d
g

r
o

w
t
h

.
c
o

m

SITE DATA

APN:                                   475-0020-146

ZONING:     I (INDUSTRIAL)

SITE AREA:                  20,977 S.F. (0.48 AC.)

BUILDING AREA:         

QSR 3,500 S.F.

COVERAGE      16.7 %

PARKING REQUIRED:         

RESTAURANT AT 1/3 SEATS  (*SEATS UNDETERMINED)

   APPROX. 1/100 S.F. (3,500 S.F.)             35 SPACES

PARKING PROVIDED:         

ACCESSIBLE 1 SPACE

COMPACT (8'X15') 1 SPACE

STANDARD (9'X19')           8 SPACES

TOTAL ON SITE PARKING          10 SPACES

TOTAL OFF-SITE PARKING         25 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLOTTED: 12/22/2017 6:37 PM \\SERVER\Data\Projects\TWA Projects\UNG - United Growth\UNG40 (Hayward, CA)\Drawings\X-dwgs\UNG40_X-09 (Site Plan).dwg by Jill 12/22/2017 6:37 PM \\SERVER\Data\Projects\TWA Projects\UNG - United Growth\UNG40 (Hayward, CA)\Drawings\X-dwgs\UNG40_X-09 (Site Plan).dwg by Jill  \\SERVER\Data\Projects\TWA Projects\UNG - United Growth\UNG40 (Hayward, CA)\Drawings\X-dwgs\UNG40_X-09 (Site Plan).dwg by Jill \\SERVER\Data\Projects\TWA Projects\UNG - United Growth\UNG40 (Hayward, CA)\Drawings\X-dwgs\UNG40_X-09 (Site Plan).dwg by Jill  by Jill Jill 

AutoCAD SHX Text
COPYRIGHT NOTICE: USE OF THESE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS IS RESTRICTED TO THE ORIGINAL PROJECT SITE FOR WHICH THEY WERE INTENDED. RE-USE OR REPRODUCTION BY ANY METHOD, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, IS PROHIBITED. TITLE TO DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS INCLUDING ALL DESIGNS, IDEAS AND INFORMATION REMAINS WITH TOM WILSON ARCHITECT, INC. VISUAL CONTACT WITH THESE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS CONSTITUTE PRIMA FACIE EVIDENCE OF THE ACCEPTANCE OF THESE RESTRICTIONS.





WHIPPLE   ROAD

W
IE

GM
AN

   
RO

AD

(92' ROW)

(6
0'

 R
O

W
)

C1

TO
PO

G
RA

PH
IC

 S
UR

VE
Y

1" = 20'

OF          1           SHEETS

SHEET

N
O

.
RE

VI
SI

O
N

N
O

.
BY

RE
VI

SI
O

N
BY

H
AY

W
AR

D

JUNE, 2014DATE

SCALE

SURVEYOR

JOB NO. A11633-5

JDT

O
F

FO
R

PA
RC

EL
 2

 -
 P

M
 7

82
5

UN
IT

ED
 G

RO
W

TH
CA

LI
FO

RN
IA

DRAFTER DJA

KI
ER

 &
 W

RI
G

H
T

CI
VI

L 
EN

G
IN

EE
RS

 &
 S

UR
VE

YO
RS

, I
N

C.
28

50
 C

ol
lie

r 
Ca

ny
on

 R
oa

d 
   

   
 P

ho
ne

 (9
25

) 2
45

-8
78

8
Li

ve
rm

or
e,

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 9

45
51

   
   

   
Fa

x 
(9

25
) 2

45
-8

79
6

NOTES

LEGEND



Home
Depot

Food
Maxx

Pep
Boys

Denny's

Taco Bell

McDonald's

24 Hour
Fitness

Starbucks

Tire & Wheel
Mart

Target

Walmart

HAYWARDUNION CITY

City
Sport

%&'(880

Parkside Dr Amaral Ct

Almaden Blvd

Wi
eg

ma
n R

d

Kn
ap

p S
t

Pratt Ave

Am
ara

l S
t

Zephyr Ave

Whipple Rd

Industrial Pkwy SW

I0 250 500125 Feet
United Growth Site

 January 2018

PROPOSED
SITE



CITY OF HAYWARD Hayward City Hall
777 B Street

Hayward, CA 94541
www.Hayward-CA.gov

File #: RPT 18-069

DATE:      April 2, 2018

TO:           Council Economic Development Committee

FROM:     Economic Development Manager

SUBJECT
Future Meeting Topics as of April 2, 2018

That the Committee reviews the attached Future Meeting Topics list.
ATTACHMENTS

Attachment I Future Meeting Topics as of April 2, 2018

CITY OF HAYWARD Printed on 3/30/2018Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™

http://www.legistar.com/


Council Economic Development Committee
Future Meeting Topics as of April 2, 2018

RESPONSIBLE STAFF FUTURE MEETING AGENDA ITEMS
Economic 

Development Report on the changing demand for retail

Economic 
Development

Improve marketing of City events to local businesses to keep workers 
in town

Economic 
Development Analysis of sales tax revenues generated by housing versus retail uses

Economic 
Development Report back on workforce development activities

Economic 
Development

Have a Maker Space representative give a presentation or take a tour 
and hold a meeting there

Development Services Update of Downtown Specific Plan Update
Community & Media 

Relations Division Marketing and Branding Update (consistency of efforts)


	Agenda
	Minutes of Regular Meeting March 5, 2018
	Preliminary Concept Review:  United Growth Drive Thru - 2429 Whipple Road
	Attachment I Staff Report
	Attachment II Conceptual Project
	Attachment III Map
	Future Meeting Topics as of April 2, 2018



